¥i¥ Shropshire

Council

Shropshire Council

Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall

Abbey Foregate

Shrewsbury

SY2 6ND

Date: 18 January 2024

Committee:
Pensions Board

Date: Friday, 26 January 2024
— Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Wilfred Owen Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury,
Shropshire, SY2 6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. The Agenda is attached
There will be some access to the meeting room for members of the press and public, but

this will be limited. If you wish to attend the meeting please email
democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to check that a seat will be available for you.

Please click here to view the livestream of the meeting on the date and time stated on the
agenda

The recording of the event will also be made available shortly after the meeting on the
Shropshire Council Youtube Channel Here

Tim Collard
Assistant Director - Legal and Governance

Members of Pensions Board

Member Representatives
John Hall
Vacancy
Dave Wright (Chairman)

Employer Representatives
Liz Furey

Madeline Murphy

Helen Woodvine

Your Committee Officer is:
Michelle Dulson Committee Officer

Tel: 01743257719 Email: michelle.dulson@shropshire.gov.uk

www.shropshire.gov.uk
General Enquiries: 0845 678 9000

Printed on recycled paper



mailto:democracy@shropshire.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/featured
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/streams

AGENDA
Apologies

To receive apologies for absence.

Declarations of Conflicts of Interest

Members are reminded that they should declare any interests which may lead to
conflicts of interest in the subject area or any specific agenda item of this
meeting. A conflict of interest is defined as a financial or other interest which is
likely to prejudice a person’s exercise of functions as a member of the Pension
Board. It does not include a financial or other interest arising merely by virtue of
that person being a member of the LGPS.

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 6)

The Minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2023 are attached for
confirmation.

Contact: Michelle Dulson (01743) 257719

Public Question Time

To receive any questions from the public, notice of which has been given in
accordance with Procedure Rule 14. The deadline for this meeting is 5pm on
Monday 22 January 2024.

Administration and Regulatory Updates (Pages 7 - 44)

Report attached.

Contact: Vicky Jenks 01743 252192

Pensions Committee Reports and Feedback

For Board Members to raise any questions following the recent Pensions
Committee meeting.

Please click on the link below to access the reports considered by the Pensions
Committee at its meeting on 1 December 2023.

Agenda for Pensions Committee on Friday, 1st December, 2023, 10.00 am —
Shropshire Council



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=260&MId=4873&Ver=4
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=260&MId=4873&Ver=4

10

11

12

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Pensions Board will be held at 10.00am on the 26 April
2024.

Exclusion of Press and Public

To RESOLVE that in accordance with the provision of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972, Section 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations and
Paragraphs 3 of the Council’'s Access to Information Rules, the public and press
be excluded during consideration of the following items.

Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 45 - 48)
The Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on the 13 October 2023 are attached

for confirmation.
Contact Michelle Dulson (01743) 257719

Economic Update (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 49 - 56)

Report attached.

Contact: Peter Chadderton 07990 086399

Pensions Committee Exempt Reports and Feedback (Exempted by

Category 3)

For Board Members to raise any questions following the recent Pensions
Committee meeting.

Please click on the link below to access the reports considered by the Pensions
Committee at its meeting on 1 December 2023.

Agenda for Pensions Committee on Friday, 1st December, 2023, 10.00 am —
Shropshire Council

Governance Update (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 57 - 62)

Report attached.
Contact: Alison Grange (01743) 253823


https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=260&MId=4873&Ver=4
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=260&MId=4873&Ver=4

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

Committee and Date

¥ Shropshire

Pensions Board
= Council

26 January 2024

PENSIONS BOARD

Minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2023

In the Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2
6ND
10.00 -11.40 am

Responsible Officer: Michelle Dulson
Email: michelle.dulson@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 257719

Present

Member Representatives
John Hall

Dave Wright

Vacancy

Employer Representatives
Madeline Murphy
Helen Woodvine

1  Apologies

An apology was received from Liz Furey — Employer Rep.
2 Declarations of Conflicts of Interest

No conflicts of interest were declared.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting

Matters Arising

Mike Morris was shown as being present and giving apologies. The Committee
Officer to amend the Minutes accordingly.

Paragraph 53 Administration and Requlatory Updates

It was confirmed that the Annual Report for 2022/23 had been presented to the
September meeting of the Pensions Committee not the Board.

The Pensions Administration Manager agreed to include a breakdown of the number
of active members each employer had for the January 2024 meeting.

Paragraph 55 Update on LGPS Central Chairs meetings

It was confirmed that the Head of Penq@kap@oild be attending the Chairman’s
meeting on 23 October 2023 and John HalPwould be joining remotely.



[ Minutes of the Pensions Board held on 13 October 2023

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 May 2023 be approved and signed by the
Chairman as a correct record, subject to the above.

4 Public Question Time
No public questions had been received.

5 Administration and Regulatory Updates

The Board received the report of the Pensions Administration Manager — copy
attached to the signed Minutes — which provided Members with the latest
administration and regulatory updates affecting the Local Government Pensions
Scheme since the Administration report provided to Pensions Board on 9 May 2023
and Pensions Committee on 15 September 2023.

The Pensions Administration Manager introduced and amplified her report. She
explained that the administration team were heavily focussed on ensuring that
policies and procedures were up to date and were currently working on producing a
Business Plan purely for the pensions function and it was hoped to take the first draft
to the Pensions Committee in December before coming to the next Pensions Board
meeting in January.

The Pensions Administration Manager drew attention to the ‘My Pensions online’
update which indicated that only half of all active members viewed their benefits
online. Once the resources within the team were back to full strength, they would do
a push to get more online registrations and were using the national ‘Pension
Attention’ campaign.

The Pensions Administration Manager explained that a Pensions Savings Webinar
had been held on the 10 October for employers who may be affected by future tax
implications and a number of one-to-one guidance sessions had been arranged with
a tax specialist. She reported that the Autumn edition of the ‘In touch’ publication
was currently being drafted and would include an article about recruitment of a new
Pensioner representative.

She went on to report that the employers meeting was due to take place on 14
November 2023 with the main topic likely to be the McCloud remedy which had been
implemented in legislation from 1 October 2023. There was a lot of work to do
before the National Dashboard came into being in 2026 to ensure that all employer
data was up to date.

Turning to disaster recovery, the Pensions Administration Manager confirmed that
the Council’'s Pensions Administration system was now held by Haywoods in their
Cloud and a successful disaster recovery exercise had been undertaken. The
Pensions Administration Manager drew attention to the update from the Scheme
Advisory Board (SAB) in relation to their scheme valuation from 2022, an update
around the gender pensions gap and surpluses working group.

Contact: Michelle Dulson on 01743257719 2 |
Fage 2




[ Minutes of the Pensions Board held on 13 October 2023 |

Looking at the McCloud remedy, the Pensions Administration Manager informed the
Board that although this was now in legislation, they were still awaiting statutory
guidance around how to calculate different elements of the pensions’ benefits. They
were currently working with their software provider to include a calculation for
McCloud within the system and it was hoped to go live with that in the next few
weeks. The Pensions Administration Manager reported on the recent team training
day which had covered McCloud and the national pensions dashboard.

In response to a query, the Pensions Administration Manager went into more detail
around the issue of surpluses and how they were going to be dealt with going
forward should they continue to grow, and she agreed to keep the Board updated.

In response to a further query, the Pensions Administration Manager updated the
Board in relation to staffing within the Pensions Team. She confirmed that a new
Pensions Administration Manager had been appointed to replace herself and would
start on 19 December 2023. She reminded members that Alison Grange had been
appointed to replace the Communications and Governance Team Leader and they
had just successfully appointed a new Senior Communications and Governance
Officer to replace Alison, although they did not yet have a start date. They currently
had one vacancy within the team which would be advertised shortly.

The Pensions Administration Manager added that recruitment nationally was very
difficult, and she confirmed that the LGA were looking at introducing some new
gualifications to aid retention of staff and make it more nationally recognised as a
proper profession.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted.

6 Cost Transparency

The Pensions Investment and Responsible Investment Manager gave a verbal
update in relation to a meeting which himself and the Pensions Investment Officer
had attended in relation to Cost Transparency. He explained that cost transparency
was a scheme that the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) had put into place and was a
voluntary agreement for investment managers to provide all Local Government
Pensions Scheme (LGPS) funds and pools with cost information in a standardised
format supported by an online system which would give access to that information.

Although not new, having been around since 2019, the SAB were now pushing ita
bit more as it had grown over time, with a lot more manager take-up (90% of assets
within LGPS were covered by 159 managers with a 95% template completion rate).
Also, up until 2023, they had only been able to include the costs for level one and
two investments eg equities and bonds, but did not include any level three
investments eg private market investments, infrastructure, private equity or some of
the more complicated investments like insurance linked securities. However, from
April 2023 it was hoped to include level three investments within the template so

| Contact: Michelle Dulson on 01743 257719 3|




[ Minutes of the Pensions Board held on 13 October 2023

there would be one data source where information on costs could be found. The
data could then be used to do comparisons with other LGPS funds and could be
shared with the Pensions Board and Pensions Committee. Although net
performance was still the key driver, being able to look at costs in more detail would
also be helpful going forward. A validation exercise would however need to be
undertaken to ensure the data was accurate. The other issue was that under the
scheme, managers had 90 days from quarter end to submit the information so at
year end they would have until the end of June whereas the deadline to produce the
draft accounts was the end of May. However, if the rest of the costs were validated it
would give a better way to estimate what that final quarter would be.

The Pensions Investment and Responsible Investment Manager confirmed that the
cost was covered within the SAB fees. Once this had been looked into more
thoroughly, he would bring a report back to the Board with some example reports.
Members felt this information would be invaluable.

7 Pensions Committee Reports and Feedback

The reports considered by the Pensions Committee at its meeting on 23 June 2023
and 15 September 2023 had been received by the Board.

In response to a query, it was confirmed that the Committee had voted (three to two)
against having a public AGM. No public AGM had been held since the Covid19
pandemic, but even prior to that, the numbers attending had reduced year on year,
and along with the different ways of working and with information being provided
online and via webinars, this gave access to a lot more members and a lot more
employers. The Pensions Administration Manager confirmed that face to face
meetings were however still available, if required and they still go out to employers
on site, if requested.

The Board considered and agreed with the decision of the Committee to not hold a
public AGM.

8 Date of Next Meeting

The Chairman reported that the next meeting would be held on Friday 26 January
2024 at 10.00am.

9 Exclusion of Press and Public

RESOLVED:

That in accordance with the provision of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972, Section 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and
Access to Information) (England) Regulations and Paragraphs 3 of the Council’s
Access to Information Rules, the public and press be excluded during consideration
of the following items.

Contact: Michelle Dulson on 01743257719 4 |
Fage 4




[ Minutes of the Pensions Board held on 13 October 2023

10

11

12

13

Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3)

RESOLVED:

That the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 9 May 2023 be approved and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record, subject to the above.

Economic Update (Exempted by Category 3)

The Board received the exempt report of the Pensions Investment and Responsible
Investment Manager — copy attached to the signed Exempt Minutes — which provided
an update on the general economic conditions for the third quarter of 2023 and gave
an unaudited portfolio valuation of the fund as at 29 September 2023.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report and Appendix A be noted.

Pensions Committee Exempt Reports and Feedback (Exempted by Category 3)

The exempt reports considered by the Pensions Committee at its meetings on 23
June 2023 and 15 September 2023 had been received by the Board.

Governance Update (Exempted by Category 3)

The Board received the report of the Communications and Governance Team Leader
— copy attached to the signed Exempt Minutes — which provided an update on the
Breaches of LGPS regulations recorded for the quarter ending 30 June 2023
affecting the Shropshire County Pension Fund. Updates on all other governance
issues were also included within the report.

RESOLVED:

To note the contents of the report, the contents of Appendix A and to agree Appendix
B.

Signed (Chairman)

Date:

Contact: Michelle Dulson on 01743257719 5 |




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

A Committee and date ltem

Eﬂ Shl’OpShire Pensions Board

Council Public
26 January 2024

10.00am

Administration and regulatory updates

Responsible Officer: Vicky Jenks
Email: vicky.jenks @shropshire.gov.uk
Tel: (01743) 252192

1. Synopsis

1.1. The report provides Pension Board members with the latest
administration and regulatory updates affecting the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS).

2. Executive Summary

2.1 This report covers the administration and regulatory issues which have
arisen since Pensions Committee on the 1 December 2023 and
Pensions Board on the 13 October 2023, including an update from The
Scheme Advisory Board (SAB), and information regarding the McCloud
project and Pensions Dashboard Programme (PDP).

2.2. A draft Business Plan for 2024-2026 was approved at the pensions
committee meeting on 1 December 2023 and a final version will be
prepared for approval atthe March committee meeting. The business
plan highlights the key priorities for the fund as well as areas of change
and projects which are in addition to day-to-day “business as usual’
duties.

3. Recommendations

3.1 Pension Board members are asked to note the contents of this report
with or without comment.

REPORT
4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal
4.1. Risk Management

By ensuring the guidance and legislation mentioned in this report is
followed and adhered to, risks to the fund are minimised. A risk register
is kept and updated in line with council corporate policy.

4.2. Human Rights Act Appraisal

The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the
Human Rights Act 1998.

4.3. Environmental Appraisal

Page 7


mailto:vicky.jenks@shropshire.gov.uk

Pensions Board; 26 January 2024: Administration and regulatory updates

There is no direct environmental, equalities or climate change
consequence of this report.

5. Financial Implications
5.1. Currently there are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

6. Climate change appraisal

6.1. Energy and fuel consumption: No effect
Renewable energy generation: No effect
Carbon offsetting or mitigation: No effect
Climate Change adaptation: No effect

7. Administration and regulatory update

7.1. In addition to this report, the Pensions Board are advised to note the
pensions administration reports submitted to the Pension Committee on
1 December 2023.

7.2. The draft business plan for 2024-2026 was approved at the December
Pensions Committee, the final version will be sent to the March
Committee for approval. A copy of the draft report is attached. (Appendix
1).

8. Cyber security

8.1. The Data Protection Act 2018, along with guidance from The Pensions
Regulator, sets out rules that pension funds must follow to make sure
they have good cyber security. Shropshire County Pension Fund takes
data security very seriously and works closely with Shropshire Council's
IT team and any companies providing pensions software to confirm that
the systems holding personal data are protected.

9. Communications

9.1. The fund monitors member take-up of its online area member self-
service (MSS), known by members as ‘My Pension Online.” The annual
benefit statements for both active and deferred members are now
available to view on ‘My Pension Online’ unless a member has requested
a paper copy. As of 01 December 2023 a total of 51% active members
and 43% of deferred members and 50% of pensioners were registered to
view their records on ‘My Pension Online’.

9.2. An employer update is sent monthly via an email bulletin to all registered
contacts at participating employers within the fund. The topics covered
recently were:

November

Employer Meeting — link of recording sent to all employers

Page 8




Pensions Board; 26 January 2024: Administration and regulatory updates

December

McCloud update
Seasons greetings
2022/2023 annual report published

10. Update from Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) meeting held on 4 December

2023

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

The SAB met on December 4 2023.
The Board discussed:

* King’'s Speech

* Autumn Statement

* Surpluses Statement

* Code of Transparency reporting system

Pension Board members can read a detailed summary of the meeting on
the Board updates page of the SAB website.

11. Knowledge and skills survey

11.1.

The knowledge and skills survey for Pension Board and committee
members provided by SAB closed on November 6. The Compliance and
Reporting Committee, knowledge and skills working group, will provide a
presentation for the LGA governance conference on this topic in January
2024, for which two of the Funds Officers have assisted with its content.
The results from the survey will be used to plan training for Board and
Committee Officers.

12. Pension fund annual reports

12.1.

The 2022/23 Shropshire County Pension Fund annual report has been
published on the website by the statutory deadline of 1 December 2023.
The report remains in draft and cannot be finalised until the audit report
has been received.

13.New minister for LGPS

13.1.

Simon Hoare MP has been appointed Parliamentary Under Secretary of
State at DLUHC, with ministerial responsibility for the LGPS. The
Minister took over the role on 13 November 2023 as part of the latest
government reshuffle and replaces Lee Rowley MP, who has become
Minister of State (Housing) at DLUHC.

Page 9 3



https://lgpsboard.org/index.php/board-meetings

Pensions Board; 26 January 2024: Administration and regulatory updates

13.2. Paul Maynard MP is the new pensions minister. Paul joined the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) as Parliamentary Under
Secretary of State on 13 November 2023. He replaces Laura Trott MP,
who has become Chief Secretary to the Treasury.

14. HMT confirms LTA abolition next April

14.1. It was announced in the Autumn Statement on 22 November 2023 that
legislation which is to be included in the Finance Bill 2023 will be put in
place to fully abolish the lifetime allowance (LTA) from 6 April 2024.

14.2. HMRC have issued a newsletter that provides guidance to Funds with
regard to how this should be implemented and reported.

15. McCloud

15.1. On 6 November 2023, the LGA sent administering authorities a McCloud
factsheet for members. This has been added to the SCPF website and
sent to members in scope either by email or letter. The fund has now
completed the disclosure requirement for McCloud, sending 8,680 letters
and emails to a further 12,830 members in scope.

15.2. The LGA has published the first instalment of the McCloud technical
guide for administrators. The guide explains how the underpin protection
works in the LGPS after the changes made because of the McCloud
case. The guide is being released in instalments due to the breadth and
complexity of the McCloud remedy project and because guidance is still
outstanding in some areas.

15.3. Software updates have been provided for the underpin check to be
undertaken on all members in scope who are leaving the scheme. This
will ensure that members will get the correct benefit when they take
payment of their pension. We await developments required which will
enable the team to do the retrospective checks on members in scope
who have left the scheme pre-1 October 2023. These developments are
expected in the next release which is scheduled for roll out in February
2024.

15.4. As part of the McCloud remedy any teacher who has excess service in
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (service over and above that of a full
time Teacher) will have their pension entitlement for this credited in the
LGPS. The Teachers Pensions Scheme have contacted administering
authorities to provide an indication for when LGPS Funds will receive
further information regard individuals who are affected. According to the
notification we expect to receive this in May 2024, and will update the
Board once further information is available.

16. Pensions Dashboards
16.1. The LGA has published a draft LGPS Pensions Dashboards connection

guide and will publish a final version when the Money and Pensions
Service (MaPS) issues guidance on the staged timetable for connection.

Page 10




Pensions Board; 26 January 2024: Administration and regulatory updates

The guide sets out the steps administering authorities need to take to
connect to the dashboards ecosystem. The LGPS Technical Group has
established a sub-group to look at AVCs and dashboards. The sub-group
will work with all ten LGPS AVC providers to establish common
approaches on matching and providing value data.

16.2. The Money and Pensions Service (MaPS) plan to publish the staged
timetable for connection to the dashboard in Spring 2024. The staging
guidance will confirm the proposed staging date of 30 September 2025.
Regulation 15(2) of the Pensions Dashboards Regulations 2022 confirms
administering authorities have a legal duty to have regard to this
guidance.

17. The Pensions Regulator (TPR)

17.1. The Pensions Regulator (TPR) published the results of its survey on
governance and administration practices among public service pension
schemes on 27 November 2023. The survey was conducted online from
January to March 2023 and received responses from 191 of 204 public
service pension schemes. The survey covered topics such as risk
management, annual benefits statements, breaches of the law and
dashboards.

18. The Pensions Ombudsman (TPO)

18.1. The TPO has expressed its disappointment about the recent Court of
Appeal ruling that itis not a competent court for enforcing a dispute
about a monetary obligation under section91(6) of the Pensions Act
1995. The ruling means that the TPO decision to allow
recoupment/recovery from a pension is not enough to enforce it. The
Fund would also need to obtain a County Court Order.

The Department of Work and Pensions is supporting a change to
legislation to formally empower the TPO to remove the need to obtain a
County Court Order.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all
reports, but does not include items containing exempt or
confidential information)

Pensions Administration Report

Pensions Committee Meeting 1 December 2023

Pensions Board Meeting 13 October 2023 Administration and
Regulatory updates

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)

N/A

Local Member

N/A

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Draft Shropshire County Pension Fund Business Plan
2024-2026

Page 11



https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/public-service-research-2023.ashx
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/public-service-research-2023.ashx

Pensions Board; 26 January 2024: Administration and regulatory updates

Page 12




Shropshire
% County
Pension Fund

Business Plan
2024-2026




Contents

VEISION HISTOIY ... .o e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e eeraaaas 2
BaCKGIOUNG..... s 3
1 10T [T (oo 6
HOFIZON SCANNING......eeiiiiiiiiii ettt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e nnnnneeeeeeaee s 9
Delivering the BUSINESS Plan.........cccoooiiiiiiiiii e 10
Monitoring and Reporting ........cooooiiiiiii 10
BUSINESS @S USUAI ...ttt e 10
L€ oY= 4 g =T oo = PP 10
LN =TS} 1 =T | £ 11
e [0 015 4= (1o o T 11
W] Lo T TS TN e =T o 13
BUAGEE .. e et e e e e e e e e e e — e e e et e eaa s 19
RISK REGISTEN ... e 20
(€0} =Ty o F= T o 24
Governance Compliance Statement ...........coooooiiiiiii i 24
Pension Administration Strategy RepOrt .......cc..ooooiiiiiiiii e 24
FunNding and INVESTMENTS ..........uuiiiiiiii s 24
Funding Strategy Statement ... 24
Investment Strategy Statement ..............uu e 25
(07114 4= 1 (Y O o T= o o [ YO UUUPPPTPPIR 26
Training Policy and Plan ... e e 27
TrAINING POLICY ..ttt 28
Pensions CommIttee ... 29
oY T[] TSN = T = o S 30
WOrKforce PIanning...........ooi oot 30
Page |1 V0.4 November 2023

Page 14



Version History

Version
Number

Revision
Date

Author(s)

Justin Bridges, Debbie
Sharp, Peter Chadderton,
Cheryl Morrell, Helen Document creation and initial content
vVo.1 24/05/2023 Tomkins, Alison Grange, added.
Ben Driscoll, Ed Roberts,
Jake Glover
Justin Bridges, Debbie
Sharp, Peter Chadderton,
V0.2 18/10/2023 | Sheryl Morrell, Helen Content amended / further additions.
Tomkins, Alison Grange, Photos added
Ben Driscoll, Ed Roberts, '
Jake Glover
Justin Bridges, Peter
E/Ir;erlfe?leﬁoerl]ér?tllgglkins Added Revision History section.
V0.3 07/11/2023 ) ’ ’ Further photos added.
Alison Grange, Action Plan updated
Ben Driscoll, Ed Roberts, P )
Jake Glover
Accepted all changes and resolved all
comments - finalised to be shared with
Vo4 20/11/2023 | Jake Glover Pensions Committee in December
2023.
Page |2 V0.4 November 2023

Page 15




Background

This is the Business Plan for the Shropshire County Pension Fund, which is part of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and has more than 49,500 members, including
14,316 in receipt of a pension. It makes investments so that it can pay pensions to these
members when they reach retirement age. At its last financial year end - 315t March 2023,
these investments were valued at £2.244 billion.

Shropshire Council is the administering authority for the Shropshire County Pension Fund.

It has delegated responsibility for this to the Pensions Committee who are charged with the
governance and management of the Pension Fund. The Committee meets quarterly or more
often if required and has 9 members, made up of six councillors, two scheme member
representatives and a pensioner employer representative. A Pension Board consisting of 3
employer representatives and 3 member representatives has also been set up to assist with
oversight and governance of the Pension Fund These membership arrangements have been
designed to allow all key stakeholders to have the opportunity to be represented.

The Executive Director of Resources (section 151 Officer) is responsible for the preparation
of the Shropshire County Pension Fund’s statement of accounts in accordance with proper
practices as set out in the CIPFA code of practice on local accounting in the United
Kingdom.

Responsibility for administration of the Shropshire County Pension Fund has been delegated
by the Executive Director of Resources to the Head of Pensions - LGPS Senior Officer.
Shropshire County Pension Fund carry out the day-to-day administration of the fund. There
are 30 full time equivalent (FTE) staff involved in the administration and governance of the
fund.

Page |3 V0.4 November 2023
Page 16



Executive Director of
Resources

Pensions Pension Investment
Administration & Responsible
Manager Investment Manager

l

Pension

Communications Operations Systems & Investment Pension Fund
& Governance (13 Staff - 11.56 FTE) Support Officer Accountant
(8 Staff — 7.49 FTE) L : : (8 Staff - 7.81 FTE) (1 FTE)

(1 FTE)

The management and administration of the fund are both carried out in conjunction with
several key suppliers, in particular the fund’s Actuary - Mercers, its bank - NatWest,
custodian of the fund’s investment — Northern Trust and the administration software supplier
— Heywood. More details of the fund’s suppliers, including its arrangements for

investment management, are contained in its Annual Report published on the website
http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/

Shropshire County Pension Fund is a member of LGPS Central Limited with eight other
funds in the Midlands region. LGPS Central Ltd is jointly owned on an equal share basis by
the eight pension funds and is a Collective Portfolio Management Investment Firm (CPMI)
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). The participating pension funds are
Cheshire, Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Nottinghamshire, Shropshire, Staffordshire, West
Midlands and Worcestershire. West Midlands Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) Pension
fund will also be an investor, but not a shareholder, with its shareholder rights represented
by West Midlands.

LGPS Central Ltd has been established to manage investment assets on behalf of its eight
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds across the Midlands region. It is a multi-
asset manager, investing up to potentially £55.3 billion of assets (£26.4 billion invested as of
March 2023), on behalf of 900,000 LGPS members and 2,500 employers. As at the 315t
March 2023 the Fund had approx. £700 million of assets and commitments with LGPS
Central. The transition of assets to LGPS Central will continue as appropriate opportunities
arrive.

The Pensions Committee takes responsible investment and environmental, social and
governance issues very seriously. The Pension Fund is a signatory of the Stewardship Code
2020, Principles of Responsible Investment (PRI) and has adopted the principles of the
Taskforce for Climate-Related Financial Disclosure (TCFD). The Fund has agreed its own
climate strategy and publishes climate risk reports annually.

Page |4 V0.4 November 2023
Page 17


http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/

A,
e T SLOTETE IR




Introduction

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is a national scheme administered on a
local basis by Shropshire Council providing current and future benefits for over 53,000
scheme members.

The fund is governed by the Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Services Pensions Act
2013. The Fund is administered in accordance with the following secondary legislation:
o the LGPS Regulations 2013 (as amended)
o the LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) regulations 2014 (as
amended)
e The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016
o the Public Services Pensions (Information about Benefits) Directions 2014 [with
effect from 01/04/15]

As of 315t March 2023, there were 227 employer organisations in the fund, including the
Council, with 88 scheme employers, 42 scheduled / designated employers and 97 admitted

employers.

Membership numbers as of 315t March 2023 were:
Active members 16,825

Pensioner members 12,682

Deferred members 18,448

Widows / Dependents 1,634

Total membership 49,589

Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by
active members of the fund in accordance with the LGPS Regulations 2013 and range from
5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay. Employer contributions are set based on triennial
actuarial valuations. The last valuation was 315t March 2022, and employer contribution rates
were set ranging from 0% to 27.6% of pensionable pay. Some employers also pay
annualised cash sums in respect of the recovery of their pension deficit.

The value of the Fund on 315t March 2023 was £2.244 billion. The Funds strategic asset
allocation was agreed in June 2023 following the completion of the Actuarial Valuation and
can be found in the Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) on the fund’s website. The actual
allocation at any point in time reflects the decisions and views of the fund’s investment
managers and the movement of financial markets. The next valuation will be undertaken on
31 March 2025.

Governance: To put stakeholders at the centre of everything we do, act with integrity
and be accountable for decisions made. This will be achieved through a robust and well-
based governance framework which considers risk management, compliance and
appropriate resourcing.

Investments and funding: The fund’s primary long-term investment objective is to achieve
and maintain a funding level at, or close to, 100% of the fund’s estimated liabilities; and
within this, to endeavour to maintain stable employer contribution rates. Employing
authorities are pro-actively consulted on the funding strategy statement on which the
valuation and employer contribution rates are based.

Administration and communication: To continue delivering high-quality administration
service to all stakeholders. This will be done through working closely with our

Page |6 V0.4 November 2023
Page 19



partners and the continual review of processes and procedures to ensure that the fund
receives all income due and payments are made to the right people at the right time. There
is clear communication with all stakeholders and robust accounting and reports.

The Business Plan is an important document which sets out the aims and objectives of the
Fund over the coming few years and the outcomes the Committee and Board want to
achieve for its stakeholders. The Business Plan is one of several documents that govern
how the Pension Fund is managed. These are:

Administration strategy statement
Climate Change strategy
Communication Policy

Employer Events Policy

Funding Strategy Statement
Governance Compliance Statement
Investment Strategy Statement
Reporting Breaches Policy

Training Policy

These policies are published on the fund’s website
http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk and reviewed at least once a year by the
Pension Committee and Board.

The key actions and areas of focus in the business plan are grouped into the areas of
governance, funding and investments, and administration; the objectives for these are
summarised as follows:

Page |7 V0.4 November 2023
Page 20


http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/

V0.4 November 2023

Page |8

Page 21



2¢ obed

Horizon Scanning

Within the LGPS, certain elements are known under current legislation and can be included on the business plan and processes developed.
However, there are also changes that occur to new legislation or reviews of best practice. The fund is aware of the following potential changes,
and these will be kept under constant review. Any unknowns will be added at the appropriate time.

TPR expectations on Cyber Risk
Climate Reporting compliance
Good Governance requlations
McCloud Judgement

Pensions Dashboards

Bots and Al

IMember Demographic changes
Asset Transfer to LGPS Central

O~ N kb=

Impact Assessment

Medium High

Time Horizon

5+ years
Within 5 years
Already here

Page |9 V0.4 November 2023



Delivering the Business Plan

Monitoring and Reporting
In order to identify whether we are meeting our agreed business plan we will:

e continue to monitor progress of the key priorities and the agreed budgets on an
ongoing basis within the Pension Fund Management Team.
e provide updates on progress against these key priorities on a quarterly basis to the
Pension Fund Committee, which will be shared with the Pension Board.
e As part of these quarterly updates, we will:
i.  highlight any areas where we are exceeding or failing to achieve our targets
and the reasons why and identify any changes to the planned priorities as a
result of this.
ii.  highlight any significant additional spend or underspend in relation to the
agreed budget as it becomes apparent.

Business as Usual

The business plan highlights the key priorities for the next three years. This focuses on area
of change and project like tasks which are in addition to day-to-day “business as usual”
duties.

Managing the fund on a day-to-day basis involves a wide range of processes and
procedures, examples of which are outlined below and all of which support achievement of
the Funds objectives. The management of the Fund is significant, complex and highly
regulated requiring expert knowledge of officers and external advisors.

The following key elements are examples of day-to-day duties.

Governance

e Setting the agendas, reporting and presenting to the Pensions Board and Committee.

¢ Implementing and monitoring the achievement of other governance areas such as
training policy, conflict of interest policy, risk register and compliance against The
Pensions Regulator’'s Code of Practice.

Page [10 Page 23 V0.4 November 2023



Ensuring we adhere to legal requirements for procurement, health & safety and data
protection.

Replying to Freedom of Information requests.

Assisting internal and external auditors with their role.

Preparing and publishing the fund’s Annual Report and Statement of Accounts.
Preparation of statutory and non-statutory returns as required.

Running an annual meeting for employers.

Ensuring any breaches are recorded and reported to Board/committee.

Having a cyber security policy.

Investments

Production of year end annual accounts and annual report

Quarterly monitoring and reporting of the investment position and governance re
investor engagement for both Pensions Board and Committee.

Quarterly reconciliation of private market investments to investment manager capital
account statements.

Monitoring and review of investment costs in line with Cost transparency initiative.
Completion of statutory returns.

Monitoring of fund’s cashflow position including the raising and payment of invoices
across a number of areas.

Bank Reconciliation.

Preparation of monthly management accounts with reconciliation between manager
and custodian records.

Working with LGPS Central and other funds within the pool through investment and
responsible investment working groups

Preparation of data in respect of IAS 19 accounting disclosures for employers.
Monitoring of strategic asset allocation.

Administration

Maintaining accurate and up-to-date scheme member records.

Calculating and notifying entitlement to pension and death benefits.

Providing estimates of retirement benefits, including any additional costs to
employers.

Calculating and paying monthly pensions to all pensioners and beneficiaries.
Producing Annual Benefit Statements for all active and deferred scheme members
and payslips and P60s for pensioner members and making these documents
available on ‘My Pension Online’.

Providing ongoing information to scheme members and their beneficiaries as they
join, leave, or change their status in the fund.

Answering ad-hoc enquiries received by phone, email, letter, or ‘My Pension Online’
message.

Maintaining the fund’s website and member portal ‘My Pension Online’.

Provide new employers with information about their fund responsibilities.

Providing on-going training and technical updates to employers.

Maintaining records of all Officer, Committee and Board training completed as well as
future needs.

Administering the fund’s Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure.

Providing information to the fund’s Actuary as required.

Managing any employers who wish to join or leave the fund.

Completing statutory reporting requirements and other provisions of information to
stakeholders, including reporting against KPIs.

Maintaining and updating the pensions software system.

Page |11 Page 24 V0.4 November 2023



¢ Regular updates to employers and members regarding LGPS legislation changes
and how it impacts on them including newsletters and emails.

Page |12 Page 25 V0.4 November 2023



9z abed

Business Plan

Project Name

Year-end 2023/2024

All records to be checked from postings.
All employer forms to be reconciled to
total of monthly postings

Actions

Data cleansing to be undertaken
following last i-Connect submission for
March 2024.

Reconciliation forms and
communication to employers to be
issued February 2024. Forms
reconciled to accounts.

Project to completed by 30" June
2024.

Annual Benefit
Statements

All Annual Benefit Statements issued by
31 August

Project plan to be put in place by 31!
March 2024.

Statement preparation to commence
following completion of year end
processes.

Preparation of
Pension Fund
Annual Report

To produce annual report by statutory
deadline of 1%t December 2024.

Project plan to be put in place by
March 2024.

Review new guidance when available.
This will be compulsory from 2025.

Draft version available to be signed off
by September 2024 pension
committee.

Page |13

V0.4 November 2023




/¢ abed

Project Name

TPR One Code of
Practice outcome

Context

To demonstrate compliance with any
recommendations/regulation changes
put in place

Actions

Review guidance when available.

Progress

SAB Good
Governance Review
Outcome

To demonstrate compliance with any
recommendations/regulation changes
put in place

Review guidance when available.

McCloud Remedy

To implement the 1%t October 2023
McCloud legislation and to ensure any
guaranteed amounts are paid to
protected members.

Ensure the system is configured to
allow all calculations to perform the
underpin calculation.

All relevant documentation to be
amended.

Disclosure requirements to be met by
315t December 2023 due to the
change in legislation.

Rectification cases of past cases
during the remedy period to be
undertaken.

Went live 8" November 2023.

Priority documentation updated
for go live. Website updated.

Pensioners notified by InTouch
newsletter October 2023.

Employer
Spreadsheet

Creation of a central spreadsheet of
employers to track starters, leavers, and
actuarial data.

Spreadsheet created by Mercer for
use by the team.

In use from November 2023.

Heywood Contract
Performance
Monitoring

Working with GMPF and Audit to
produce a contract performance
monitoring document for the hosted
service.

Document to be finalised and
presented to Heywood’s

External Audit of
Pension Fund

Annual requirement

Providing information required within
the agreed timescales.

Page |14

V0.4 November 2023




gz abed

Project Name

Production of
Pension Savings
Statements

Context

Comply with HMRC regulations

Actions

Identify the members who have
breached the annual allowance.

Provide a pension saving statement
by the 5" October 2024 deadline.

Progress

Pensions Increase
2024

To ensure pensioners and deferred are
uprated with annual increase amount

Bulk process to update the system
with the confirmed CPI increase on 81"
April 2024.

Pensions Dashboard
Implementation

Implement in line with national guidelines
by October 2026.

To procure an ISP provider in 2024.

Bulk Revaluation

Annual CARE uprating to be applied to
active records

Bulk process to be run after year end
postings are complete in May/June
2024

P60 to Pensioners

UK Stewardship
Code

To produce a P60 for pensioner
members by 315t May

Stewardship is the responsible allocation,
management and oversight of capital to
create long-term value for clients and
beneficiaries leading to sustainable
benefits for the economy, the
environment and society.

The UK Stewardship Code 2020
comprises a set of 12 ‘apply and explain’
Principles for asset owners. As part of
the Fund’s desire to demonstrate its
good governance and stewardship of its

Following year end 2023/24 payroll
processes run P60 production in end
March/April 2024.

ESG monitoring is in place as part of
business as usual.

Resources have been allocated to
review positions with Investment
Managers at end of 2022 to address
any points from the 2022 application.

Lead Officer: Pensions Investment
and Responsible Investment Manager

An updated draft application will
be presented to the Pensions
Committee in March 2024 for
submission in May 2024

Page |15

V0.4 November 2023



62 abed

Project Name

Context

assets, the Fund submitted its first report
in October 2022. The Fund was
successful in its submission and is now a
signatory to the UK Stewardship Code.
The Fund has received feedback from
the FRC on its submission and the Fund
will develop its submission following this
feedback.

The Fund will submit a report annually to
the Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”)
to maintain its status as signatory to the
Code.

As part of the work on the Stewardship
Code the Fund will review its approach to
stewardship and engagement to ensure
that it continues to meet the
requirements of the Committee.

Actions

Progress

Triannual Valuation
Results

Work with Actuary to prepare and
consider the Actuarial valuation results.
The next valuation date is the 315t March
2025 alongside the Fund’'s Funding
Strategy Statement.

Regular update meetings are held
with the Actuary.

Communications will be issued to
scheme employers in 2024/25 in
respect of the valuation process.

The Funding Strategy Statement has
been updated as part of the 2022
valuation and will be reviewed and
issued for consultation following the
2025 valuation.

Lead Officer: Head of Pensions —
LGPS Senior Officer

All action has been taken in
respect of the March 2022
valuation and an indicative
timeline of work is in place for
the 2025 valuation.

Covenant Review

Work with Actuary to review Employer
covenants on an annual basis to monitor
risk to fund.

Meetings have been held with Actuary
to discuss employers subject to

The covenant review for
2023/24 is currently in progress

Page |16

V0.4 November 2023




0€ abed

Project Name

Context

Actions

review and the terms and reference of
the reviews.

Lead Officer: Pensions Investment
and Responsible Investment Manager

Progress

Climate Change Risk

The Fund issues an annual climate risk
report and TCFD report as part of its
commitment to net zero. In addition, the
Fund supports these reports by
undertaking Climate scenario analysis on
a bi-annual basis to ensure that
developments in this field are fed into
ongoing analysis.

Climate Risk reports and TCFD
reports have been commissioned with
LGPS Central.

Alternative Investment managers ESG
policies and progress on Climate Risk
monitoring are reviewed periodically
with a view to establishing full portfolio
monitoring.

Lead Officer: Pensions Investment
and Responsible Investment Manager

The 2023 Climate Risk & TCFD
Reports will be presented to
Pensions Committee in
December 2023

Investment Strategy
Statement

The Fund sets a triannual investment
strategy which was last reviewed in June
2023 and the Fund is currently working
on transition plans to meet the new
strategic asset allocation. The investment
strategy review took place concurrently
with the review of the Funding Strategy
Statement in 2022/23. The outstanding
actions now are implementing the agreed
changes to the investment strategy. The
implementation of the revised investment
strategy will occur over a period to
manage transition risks.

Reports on the Investment transition
to meet the new ISS were presented
to Pensions Committee in September
2023.

The transition will take approx. 18 to
24 months to fully implement given
some of the illiquid asset classes
involved.

A full timetable is in place and
Pensions Committee will be updated
on a quarterly basis of major changes.

Lead Officer: Head of Pensions —
LGPS Senior Officer

The Investment strategy was
agreed in June 2023

Transition to Investment Grade
Corporate Bonds was
completed in October 2023.

Page |17

V0.4 November 2023



T¢ obed

Project Name

Pooling

Context

The Fund works directly with LGPS
Central to ensure that appropriate
products are available to meet future
investment requirements and allow
transition from legacy managers as
investments mature.

The Fund will review and respond to
DLUHC consultations on the future
development of pooling

Actions

The Fund Continues to work with
LGPS Central to ensure that
appropriate investment vehicles are
available to allow the transfer of the
Funds uncommitted assets.

The transition of illiquid assets will
continue to be reviewed based on
maturity profiles and investment
opportunities available.

The Fund has responded to the
DLUHC consolation on moving
pooling forward.

Lead Officer: Head of Pensions —
LGPS Senior Officer

Progress

The Fund Continues to
transition assets as
opportunities arise.

The outcome of the DLUHC
consultation on moving pooling
forward is awaited.

Page |18

V0.4 November 2023




Budget

The pension fund categorises its expenditure for the management of the Pensions Fund
according to CIPFA’s definitions:

¢ Investment management — the cost of managing the Fund’s assets, which includes
fees paid to the Funds Investment managers and custodian.
¢ Administration — All activities the Administering Authority must perform to

administer entitlements and provide members with scheme and benefit entitlement
information.

¢ Oversight & Governance — the costs of accounting for and monitoring the Pension
Fund, including any professional advice and support the Fund requires.

Operational Expenses 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Actual Budget Budget Budget
£m £m £m £m

Investment Management

Management & Performance Fees 8.618 9.450 9.600 9.750
Transaction Costs 4.305 3.800 3.900 4.000
Other Fees 2.899 2.990 3.082 3.174
Administration

Staff Costs 1.074 1.128 1.162 1.196
IT 0.278 0.600 0.450 0.450
Premises 0.019 0.020 0.020 0.020

The Budget is reviewed annually and has been prepared to reflect the cost of delivering the
Pension Fund'’s statutory responsibilities for the administration of the scheme and

Page |19 Page 32 V0.4 November 2023



management of investments. The resources within the budget are sufficient to meet the
Fund’s regulatory requirements at the time of writing. The new developments and initiatives
in the Fund’s Business Plan are included in the forward budget.

T g

Risk Register

Risk management is the process of identifying risks, evaluating their likelihood and potential
impact and determining the most effective methods of controlling or responding to them.
Shropshire Council has a formal risk management strategy and risk registers for Pension
Fund Investment, Investment Pooling and Pension Administration are included within this
overall Strategy. Please see below a summary of the Pension Fund’s key risks which were

identified for 2022/23.

Risks Controls in Place

Climate change and responsible investment
(RI) — Funds are facing increasing pressure
on divestment and to take action to address
climate risks in the portfolio.

Climate risk assessment carried out.
Robust RI policies, engagement and
collaboration. Public TCFD report. Climate
Strategy/Climate Stewardship plan in place.
Signatory to the UK Stewardship Code.
Work finalised to become signatory to the
new Stewardship Code.

Regulatory risk — climate and responsible
investment (RI)

Rl integrated into the investment process.
Monitoring of developments, responding to
consultations when issued. Appointment of
new Pension Investment and Responsible
Investment manager post.

Cyber-attack resulting in loss of data
leading to fines by the ICO and reputational
damage.

Cyber security currently undertaken by
Shropshire Council ICT. Separate Cyber
Security policy being developed for SCPF.

Loss or inappropriate disclosure of personal
data leading to fines and reputational loss.

ICT security used such as data encryption,
secure mail and document management
software with strict security profiles. Secure

Page |20

Page 33

V0.4 November 2023



Risks Controls in Place

working environment. Protecting
information training undertaken by all staff
annually.

The insolvency of an employer places
additional liabilities on the fund and
ultimately the remaining employers.

Admission agreements, employer covenant
check across fund employers, some bonds
in place. Shorter deficit recovery periods for
some employers. Funding Strategy
Statement approved by Pension
Committee.

Failure of pension fund investment
managers to meet expected returns
resulting in increased costs to the Council
and other employers.

Rigorous selection process established.
Rigorous and continual Investment
Manager monitoring arrangements.
Diversification of managers. External
expert advice. Reporting and monitoring
arrangements. Investment Strategy
Statement and Funding Strategy Statement
published. Clear and relevant mandates.
Audit of investment managers.

Liquidity risk in government bond markets
due to higher interest rates and tighter
monetary policy. Potential for quantitative
tightening by Bank of England to further
reduce liquidity from Bond markets.

Monitoring of investment performance
relative to estimated growth in liabilities on
an annual basis. Some investment in bonds
(and similar investments) helps to mitigate
this risk. Investment Strategy reviewed
regularly with Aon and full review with
committee.

Vulnerable to loss of or over-reliance of key
staff due to long-term sickness or staff
turnover resulting in reduction of service to
scheme employers.

Procedure notes updated. Team
restructured and additional resource added
in 2022 to allow for succession planning.
Training undertaken annually. Training
policy and training log put in place.

Savings from pooling are not realised as
fully or as quickly as planned for due to
market factors or inaccurate assumptions in
LGPS Central’'s business plan.

Research is being undertaken to ensure
predictive savings are realistic. Plan for
reviewing progress against the business
plan has been agreed with the Board.
Prudent assumptions have been used when
estimating fee reductions and transition
timescales. Financial model is continually
updated.

Investments in LGPS Central not delivering
the required investment return which could
result in the need for increased employer
contributions.

Investment performance regularly reported
and monitored by the Pension Committee
and action taken to report any concerns via
the Joint Committee and Shareholders
Forum.

Insufficient range of asset classes or
investment styles being available through
the investment pool.

Investment workstream set up to create
sub-funds to implement participating funds
investment strategies. Participating fund
data gathered and analysed in detail at
Officer Practitioner Advisory Forum
meetings. Product Development Plan
agreed by the Partner Funds/LGPS Central.

Inappropriate investment strategy

Funding strategy statement published
following consultation with scheme

Page |21

Page 34

V0.4 November 2023



Risks Controls in Place

employers outlining how the fund plans to
meet its liabilities. External expert advice.
Trained and experienced staff. Three yearly
actuarial valuation. Investment strategy
statement. Regular review of investment
strategy with Aon.

Failure to meet good governance

Compliance against Myners Principles
considered on an annual basis as part of
the review and updating of the Investment
Strategy Statement. The fund has
produced a Governance Compliance
Statement. Audit of governance
arrangements.

Economic recession impacting on
investment returns.

Diversified investment strategy to spread
risk across a number of different asset
classes.

Pay and price inflation significantly higher
than anticipated and pensioners in receipt
of pensions for longer resulting in an
increase in the Fund’s liabilities,
deterioration in funding position and
increase in employer contribution rates.

Actuarial valuation process focuses on real
returns on assets. Monitoring of investment
performance in relation to the estimated
growth in liabilities. Some investment in
index-linked bonds (and other inflation
linked investments) helps to mitigate this
risk. Triennial strategic asset allocation
review considers appropriateness of assets.
Mortality assumptions are set with some
allowance for future increases in life
expectancy as part of the valuation process
which the fund actuary monitors. Equity
protection strategy in place.

Incorrect information/benefits provided to
members of the scheme.

Benefits calculations are checked. All
supporting calculations are provided to the
member. Team training, Employer training.

Late payment of contributions by fund
employers leading to the fund having to
report to the Pension Regulator and
possibly be fined.

Employer training/guidance on website.
Employer newsletter. Contributions check
and balance. Adhere to internal governance
compliance statement. Adhere to Pension
Regulator code of practice. Breaches log
monitoring. Engage with employers to
ensure contributions received on time.

Failure of employers to provide accurate
data leading to incorrect benefit
statement/payments or Fund valuations.

Employer training. Administration Strategy
Statement. Team training. Introduction of i-
Connect has resulted in improvement of
data. Employers trained on TPR Code.
Breaches log records any issues which are
reported to Pension Committee/Pension
Board.

Policies or strategies of the administering
authority adversely impacting on the work

Segregation of duties, delegated decision
making to Pension Committee and LGPS
Senior Officer. Quarterly report to Pension

Page |22

Page 35

V0.4 November 2023



Risks

of the pension team for the Shropshire
County Pension Fund.

Controls in Place

Committee on administration. Embedding of
Pension Board and Pension Regulator
Code and Scheme Advisory Board.

Failure to identify and report breaches of
law, in accordance with the requirements of
the Pensions Regulator leading to
reputational damage and potential fines.

Breaches policy in place together with a
breaches log which is reported to the
Pension Committee, Pension Board and
LGPS Senior Officer. Training undertaken
by key staff.

Non-compliance with the law around LGPS
Benefit Administration leading to fines by
the Pensions Regulator.

The use of a good LGPS administration
software solution together with experienced
trained staff mitigates the risks to the
council.

Failure of support systems: ERP, CIVICA
Icon which will result in incorrect data
collection, payment of benefits and
incorrect accounting.

Key systems reviews, contractual
arrangements, systems administration and
IT support.

Regulatory change occurs which impacts
either LGPS Central or partner funds.
Government changing stance on pooling
such that the model no longer meets
requirements.

Regulatory intelligence and working
collaboratively with partner funds and pool
project. Lobbying through Government
working groups. Responding to
consultations on legislative change.
Collaborating with partner pools to share
best practice.

Key persons for either LGPS Central or
partner funds either choose to leave or
unable to fulfil their responsibilities.

Succession planning taking place with
LGPSC and partner funds. Exit/handover
plans. Different notice periods for key roles.
Use of temporary resources. Governance
structures — collective decision-making
process.

Page |23

Page 36

V0.4 November 2023



Governance

Governance Compliance Statement

This statement has been prepared by Shropshire Council (the administering authority) to set
out the governance arrangements for the Shropshire County Pension Fund, in accordance
with The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (Regulation 55).

Pension Administration Strategy Report

Pension fund administering authorities have discretion as to whether to prepare a pensions
administration strategy statement. Shropshire Council, as administering authority do produce
a report under Regulation 59 of The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

This report sets out the administration processes for the fund and outlines the policies and
performance standards towards providing a cost-effective, inclusive and high-quality
administration service.

Funding and Investments

Funding Strategy Statement

Administering authorities have been required to prepare, publish and maintain a funding
strategy statement (FSS) under Regulation 58 of The Local Government Pension Scheme
2013 (as amended).

This document provides the basis for the actuarial valuation which occurs every three years.
The funding strategy statement formed the basis of the 2022 actuarial valuation. It sets out in

Page |24 Page 37 V0.4 November 2023



a transparent way the fund’s prudent approach to meeting pension liabilities and maintaining
stable employer contribution rates. It outlines the financial assumptions used in the actuarial
valuation and identifies the risks and countermeasures employed by the fund.

The FSS sets out the Funds approach to the following key areas:

e Actuarial Method and Assumptions: These define the approach used for assessing
the funding position of the fund and individual employers.

o Deficit Recovery and Surplus Offset Plans: These set out the key principles in
considering deficit recovery and surplus offset plans as part of the valuation.

¢ |l Health Insurance Arrangements: This sets out the captive insurance arrangement
which pools the risk associated with ill health retirement costs for employers whose
financial position could be materially affected by the ill health retirement of one of
their members.

e Employer Events Framework: This provides details of key areas of employer
participation in the fund, such as joining the fund or exiting the fund etc.

The FSS is developed alongside the Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) detailed below) on
an integrated basis taking into account the overall financial and demographic risks inherent
in the fund to meet the objective for all employers over different periods.

The purpose of this Funding Strategy Statement is therefore:

e to establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will identify how
employers’ pension liabilities are best met going forward by taking a prudent longer-
term view of funding those liabilities.

e to establish contributions at a level to “secure the solvency” of the pension fund and
the “long term cost efficiency”.

¢ to have regard to the desirability of maintaining as nearly constant a primary rate of
contribution as possible.

Investment Strategy Statement

Pension fund administering authorities are also required to prepare, maintain and publish an
investment strategy statement (ISS) under regulation 7 of the LGPS (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

This document sets out the investment objectives of the fund and how investments are
allocated between equities, bonds and alternatives. Target investment performance is
defined for each of the investment managers. The fund’s approach to social, environmental
and ethical issues is also explained as is the fund’s compliance with Myners Principles.

Members of the Pension Committee recognise that they have a fiduciary duty to safeguard,
above all else, the financial interests of the fund’s beneficiaries. Beneficiaries, in this context,
are considered to be the fund members (pensioners, employees and employers), other
stakeholders being local council taxpayers.

The fund’s intention is to invest its assets through the LGPS Central Pool as and when
suitable pool investment solutions become available.

The fund’s primary long term investment objective is to achieve and maintain a funding level
at, or close to, 100% of the fund’s estimated liabilities; and within this, to endeavour to
maintain low and stable employers’ contribution rates. Given the constraints on local
authority spending, volatility in the employer’s contribution rate is undesirable.

The committee formulates the investment strategy with a view to:

o the advisability of investing money in a wide variety of investments.
o the suitability of particular investments and types of investment.

Page |25 Page 38 V0.4 November 2023



e ensuring that asset allocation strategies are sufficiently diversified.

The committee will consider a full range of investment opportunities including:

quoted and unquoted equity.

government and non-government bonds.

Property, private equity and infrastructure.

absolute return investments such as hedge funds, absolute return bond funds,
insurance linked securities and other liquid alternative investments.

o derivatives, including equity options.

The following investment beliefs are taken into account when agreeing an asset allocation
policy:

¢ Along-term approach to investment will deliver better returns.

e The long-term nature of the fund’s liabilities is well suited to a long-term approach to
investment.

o Asset allocation policy is the most important driver of long-term return.

e Risk premiums exist for certain types of assets and taking advantage of these can
help to improve investment returns.

o Markets can be inefficient, and sometimes ‘mispriced’ for long periods of time, and
there is a place for both active and passive investment management.

o Diversification across investments with low correlation improves the risk/return
profile, but over-diversification is both costly and adds little value.

e The fund should be flexible enough in its asset allocation policy to take advantage of
opportunities that arise as a result of market inefficiencies, and also flexible enough
to protect against identifiable short-term risks when this is both practical and cost-
effective.

e Responsible investment can enhance long term investment performance and the
fund expects responsible investment integration to be a key part of the selection
criteria for appointing new managers.

¢ Investment management fees are important and should be minimised wherever
possible, but it is ultimately the net return to investors (i.e. the return after all fees and
costs) that is the most important factor.

Climate Change

Climate change has been identified as a significant investment risk by the Committee and as
a result the Fund has a Climate Strategy that is due for review in 2024 confirming the funds
commitment to net zero by 2050.

Below are some of the steps the Fund has taken to address climate change issues:

o Established carbon benchmarks to allow the funds carbon footprint to be reviewed on
an annual basis and track progress against the stated commitments.

e Transition all passive equity into a low carbon transition fund.

e Transitioned former UK active equity mandate into global sustainable equity
portfolio’s with LGPS Central.

o Commitment to new equity investments being in sustainable funds.
Working with LGPS Central to ensure better carbon data for wider portfolio.

¢ Working with private market managers to collect both responsible investment and
climate data on portfolios.

The Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”) have released climate-
related financial disclosure recommendations to help organisations provide better
information to support informed capital allocation. The Fund has issued three TCFD reports
to date and each report has been supported by a climate risk report and a climate
Stewardship plan setting out the actions required in the following 12 months.

Page |26 Page 39 V0.4 November 2023



The DLUHC consultation on climate risk was launched in Q3 2022, which the Fund
responded to. Whilst the Fund note that TCFD reporting at this stage was not compulsory
and that report was likely to evolve over time to ensure that the reporting meets the
necessary LGPS requirements, the Fund Believes that early adoption is the best way to
show transparency over actions taken.

The Taskforce on Nature-related Financial Disclosures (“TNFD”) aims to replicate the
success of the TCFD. It seeks to understand the interactions between business and natural
capital, with the aim of agreeing a framework to monitor nature impacts, and to encourage
businesses and investors to minimise negative impacts and maximise positive impacts on
nature. TNFD will seek to create a toolkit for business leaders and the financial community to
allocate capital away from nature-negative and towards nature-positive outcomes. Nature
based solutions are one of the few investment opportunities that are net negative in terms of
carbon emissions and natural capital opportunities will form a vital and increasingly important
part of investment portfolios as investors seek to realise their net zero ambitions. The Fund
will be considering how to integrate TNFD into its investment strategy as more information
becomes available.

Training Policy and Plan

Shropshire Council recognises the importance of its role as Administering Authority of the
Shropshire County Pension Fund. In relation to training, the Administering Authority's
objectives are to ensure that:

e Those persons charged with the financial management and decision-making with
regard to the LGPS Fund are fully equipped with the knowledge and skills required to
discharge the duties and responsibilities allocated to them.

o Those persons responsible for the day-to-day administration and running of the fund
are appropriately equipped with the knowledge and skills required to discharge their
duties and responsibilities in relation to the fund.

o Those persons responsible for providing governance and assurance of the fund have
sufficient expertise to be able to evaluate and challenge the advice they receive, to

Page |27 Page 40 V0.4 November 2023



ensure their decisions are robust and soundly based, and to manage any potential
conflicts of interest.

All to whom this policy applies are expected to continually demonstrate their own
personal commitment to training and to ensuring that these objectives are met.

To assist in achieving these objectives and the creation of this policy, the fund adopts the
following seven principles and the guidance included in the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance (CIPFA) Code of Practice 2021:

This LGPS administering authority adopts the key principles of the Code of Practice
on LGPS Knowledge and SkKills.

This LGPS administering authority recognises that effective management,
governance, decision making and other aspects of the delivery of the LGPS can only
be achieved where those involved have the requisite knowledge and skills to
discharge the duties and responsibilities allocated to them.

This administering authority has in place formal and comprehensive objectives,
policies and practices, strategies and reporting arrangements for the effective
acquisition and retention of LGPS knowledge and skills for those responsible for the
management, delivery, governance, and decision making of the LGPS.

These policies and practices will be guided by reference to a comprehensive
framework of knowledge and skills requirements such as those set down in the
CIPFA LGPS Knowledge and Skills Framework.

This administering authority will ensure that it has adequate resources in place to
ensure all staff, members, or other persons responsible for the management,
decision making, governance and other aspects of the delivery of the LGPS acquire
and retain the necessary LGPS knowledge and skills.

This administering authority will report annually on how its knowledge and skills
policy has been put into practice throughout the financial year in the fund’s annual
report.

This administering authority has delegated the responsibility for the implementation
of the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice to the appropriate officer, who will
act in accordance with the administering authority’s knowledge and skills policy
statement, and, where they are a CIPFA member, with CIPFA Standards of
Professional Practice (where relevant).

Training Policy
The fund has adopted a training policy which sets out how the fund intends to meet its
training responsibilities. The current training policy can be found on the fund’s website.

This policy has been prepared following the key areas of relevant legislation and guidance
include the following:

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Knowledge and
Skills framework for LGPS Committee members and LGPS Officers, Pension Board
Members and the Code of Practice

MiFID Il

Pensions Act 2004

Public Service Pensions Act 2013

Statutory Government guidance

Guidance from England and Wales Scheme Advisory Board (SAB)

The Pensions Regulator’s (TPR) Code of Practice

Training will be delivered through a variety of methods including:

in-house training sessions provided by officers and/or external providers.

Page |28 Page 41 V0.4 November 2023



virtually using webinars, online conferences and e-learning platforms

e shared training with other LGPS Funds or framework arrangements

e training at meetings (e.g. committee or pension board) provided by officers and/or
external advisers.

e external training events, such as those organised by the Local Government
Association (LGA), CIPFA, or Pensions and Lifetime Saving Association (PLSA)

e attendance at seminars and conferences offered by industry-wide bodies, such as
those organised by the LGA, LGC Pension Investment Seminars, CIPFA, Local
Authority Pension Fund Forum or PLSA

e circulation of reading material, including fund committee reports and minutes from
attendance at seminars and conferences.

e attendance at meetings and events with the fund's investment managers and
advisors

¢ links to on-line training such as that provided by The Pensions Regulator.

e the fund’s website www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk and national LGPS
websites where scheme information is available.

e fund policies and documents such as the Annual Report, Governance Compliance
Statement, Administration Strategy, Funding Strategy Statement and Investment
Strategy Statement.

e Telephone conference briefings

¢ Qualifications, particularly those relevant to senior officers

The fund has also invested in the Hymans e-learning platform which allows all officers,
committee and Board members to access the latest updates with modules covering:
Introduction to the LGPS

Governance & Regulators

Administration & Management

Funding & Actuarial Matters

Investments

Current Issues including McCloud, Goodwin, cost-sharing, cyber security, GAD
Section 13,

e Pensions Dashboard and cost cap.

Pensions Committee

The Pensions Committee meets quarterly or more often if required and at each meeting
there is a training session usually delivered by the fund investment advisors, Aon, LGPS
Central, investment fund managers, Mercer, Columbia Threadneedle Investments or
officers.

Topics are wide ranging and have included the following:

* Actuarial Valuation

* Market Outlook

* Equity Protection

* Responsible Engagement Overlay Service (REO)

* LGPS Central Limited Update

* Investment Strategy & Equity Protection update

* Targeted Return Fund

* Audit findings for SCPF

* Climate risk report

In addition, three investment strategy training workshops were run by Aon, Mercer & LGPS

Central in 2022/23 in preparation for agreeing the investment strategy statement at a future
committee meeting.

Page |29 Page 42 V0.4 November 2023



Pensions Board

Each Pension Board member received training throughout 2022/23. The training was either
provided by the Local Government Association (LGA), Aon, TPR, CIPFA or was provided by
officers in-house. Each Pension Board member and senior officers have completed the
Pensions Regulator’s eLearning programme and a skills assessment to identify areas where
further training may be required in the future. Pension Board members also attended the
investment strategy training workshops and Pension Committee meetings where key themes
this year were the actuarial valuation results, cyber security, McCloud, Pensions Dashboards
and the TPR Single Code of Practice.

The following information is also available on the fund’s website e.g. Annual Report &
Accounts, Investment Performance, Actuarial Valuation reports, Administration updates,
Climate Strategy & Stewardship Plan, Climate Risk reports, TCFD reports, Responsible
Investment information, LGPS pooling updates/information, general policies and newsletters
with regular scheme updates. In addition, all Pension Committee and Pension Board
meetings are now live streamed and recorded and available.

Both Board and Committee members have completed an online questionnaire to assess

their knowledge and skills against the CIPFA framework and responses are being used to
determine future training needs.

Workforce Planning

This is a lower priority item, it will be revisited at scheduled 6-monthly reviews and updated
accordingly.

Page |30 Page 43 V0.4 November 2023



[ o,
LAY,

Page |31 Page 44 V0.4 November 2023



Agenda Iltem 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Administration and Regulatory Updates
	Appendix 1 -SCPF Business Plan Draft
	Version History
	Monitoring and Reporting
	Governance
	Investments
	Administration
	Governance Compliance Statement
	Pension Administration Strategy Report
	Funding Strategy Statement
	Investment Strategy Statement
	Climate Change
	Training Policy
	Pensions Committee
	Pensions Board



	9 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3)
	10 Economic Update (Exempted by Category 3)
	Appendix A Jan 2024

	12 Governance Update (Exempted by Category 3)
	2024.01.26 Governance Report Appendix A- Breaches Log Q3


